
Page 1

AGENDA 
Meeting: Eastern Area Planning Committee
Place: Wessex Room, Corn Exchange, Devizes, Wiltshire
Date: Thursday 15 September 2016
Time: 6.00 pm

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kieran Elliott, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718504 or email 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

Membership:

Cllr Charles Howard (Chairman)
Cllr Mark Connolly (Vice Chairman)
Cllr Stewart Dobson
Cllr Peter Evans

Cllr Nick Fogg MBE
Cllr Richard Gamble
Cllr Jerry Kunkler
Cllr Paul Oatway QPM

Substitutes:

Cllr Terry Chivers
Cllr Ernie Clark
Cllr Anna Cuthbert
Cllr Dennis Drewett

Cllr James Sheppard
Cllr Philip Whitehead
Cllr Chris Williams

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2

Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request.

Parking

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows:

County Hall, Trowbridge
Bourne Hill, Salisbury
Monkton Park, Chippenham

County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended.

Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting.

For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution.

The full constitution can be found at this link. 

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/mglocationdetails.aspx?bcr=1
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD1629&ID=1629&RPID=12066789&sch=doc&cat=13959&path=13959
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1392&MId=10753&Ver=4


Page 3

AGENDA
Part I 

Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public

1  Apologies for Absence 

To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting.

2  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8)

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 4 
August 2016.

3  Declarations of Interest 

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee.

4  Chairman's Announcements 

To receive any announcements through the Chair.

5  Public Participation and Councillors' Questions 

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.

Statements
Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an 
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register in person no 
later than 5.50pm on the day of the meeting.

The Chairman will allow up to 3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against 
an application and up to 3 speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each 
speaker will be given up to 3 minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to 
the item being considered. The rules on public participation in respect of 
planning applications are detailed in the Council’s Planning Code of Good 
Practice.

Questions 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in particular, 
questions on non-determined planning applications. Those wishing to ask 
questions are required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the 
officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 5pm on 8 September 
2016.  Please contact the officer named on the front of this agenda for further 



Page 4

advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the 
matter is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.

6  Planning Appeals and Updates (Pages 9 - 12)

To receive details of completed and pending appeals and other updates as 
appropriate.

7  Planning Applications 

To consider and determine the following planning applications.

7a  16/03703/FUL: Land at Woodland Road, Patney, Devizes (Pages 13 
- 32)

8  Urgent items 

Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
taken as a matter of urgency  

Part II 

Item during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should 
be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be 

disclosed



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 4 AUGUST 2016 AT CHEESE HALL - DEVIZES TOWN HALL, DEVIZES, SN10 
1BN.

Present:
Cllr Charles Howard (Chairman), Cllr Mark Connolly (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Jerry Kunkler and 
Cllr Paul Oatway

Also  Present:
Cllr Stuart Wheeler

35. Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Nick Fogg MBE.

36. Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 May 2016 were presented for 
consideration, and it was,

Resolved:

That subject to adding ‘he urged’ after the second use of ‘town council’ in 
paragraph 5 of Minute 33, and amending ‘formally at two separate 
schools’ to ‘formerly at the two separate schools’ in paragraph 7, to 
approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes.

37. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Stewart Dobson declared a non-pecuniary interest in the applications 
to be considered by virtue of a family connection to an appeal decision that was 
referenced in the reports. He withdrew from the Committee and did not speak or 
vote on the items.

38. Chairman's Announcements

There were no announcements.

39. Public Participation and Councillors' Questions

The rules on public participation were noted.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



40. Planning Appeals

The Appeals update for the period between 28 April and 22 July 2016 was 
received. It was noted that application 15/01052/OUT, Land off Rabley Wood 
View, Marlborough, which had been refused by the Committee, had been 
allowed on appeal.

Details were sought on the reasons for granting the appeal, and in response to 
queries it was confirmed judicial review was the only option for challenging the 
appeal decision on a point of law.

Officers were also thanked for their work on the Newby Acre appeal, 
15/10378/FUL, which since the papers were received the refusal had been 
upheld on appeal.

Resolved:

To note the update.

41. Planning Applications

42. 16/03834/VAR:Brail Vista, 163 Crofton Road, Great Bedwyn, SN8 3LX

Public Participation
Mrs Mary Rhodes, applicant, spoke in support of the application.
Mr Peter Crozier, agent, spoke in support of the application.

The Planning Officer, Nick Clark, presented a report which recommended 
permission be refused for removal of conditions for the property known as 
‘Kestrel Cottage’ which would allow full time independent residential occupation 
of the current holiday let. Key issues included the narrow access, location 
outside the village boundary and conflicts with national and local planning policy 
for sustainable buildings in the countryside as detailed in the report.

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer.

Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee with 
their views, as detailed above.

The local unitary division member, Councillor Stuart Wheeler, then spoke in 
support of the application. He felt the application was directly comparable with 
an allowed scheme for application 15/05858/FUL and consistency with that was 
needed. He stated the impact on allowing the cottage to be let for longer 
periods would be no different to its current use, the village was easily accessible 
across the canal, no objections had been received and the parish council were 
in favour.

The Committee then debated the application. It was discussed whether there 
were sufficient similarities to the referenced application that was approved, or 

Page 6



whether in this case the national and local policies were clear that the existing 
use was viable, and whether alternate uses had been explored before removal 
of the conditions was sought. Comparisons were also made to an appeal 
dismissed in 2015 at Chute Cadley.

A motion to refuse the application in line with the officer’s recommendation was 
moved by Councillor Mark Connolly, seconded by Councillor Richard Gamble. 
At the conclusion of debate, it was,

Resolved:

That the application be refused for the following reasons:

1) The site is located in open countryside outside of the limits of 
development defined for Great Bedwyn in the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
(adopted January 2015). The proposal would therefore conflict with Core 
Policies 1, 2 and 18 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (adopted January 2015) 
which seeks to ensure that housing developments occupy sustainable 
locations throughout Wiltshire including the Pewsey Community Area.  
Furthermore, the proposal would conflict with the criteria set out in Core 
Policies 48, 51, 57 and 60 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and with 
paragraph 55 and of the NPPF for the following reasons:

 the application does not include any ‘clear evidence’ of the 
impracticality of continued use as a holiday let,

 local services and facilities could not be easily accessed other 
than by use of unsustainable modes and patterns of travel,

 the permanent independent residential use would result in 
pressure for outbuildings, washing lines, play equipment etc that 
would be detrimental to the rural and landscape character and 
appearance of the area.

43. 16/03839/VAR:Brail Vista, 163 Crofton Road, Great Bedwyn, SN8 3LX

The Planning Officer, Nick Clark, presented a report which recommended 
permission be refused for removal of conditions for the property known as 
‘Clock Tower Cottage’ which would allow full time independent residential 
occupation of the current holiday let. Key issues, as with the other cottage at the 
site, included the narrow access, location outside the village boundary and 
conflicts with national and local planning policy for sustainable buildings in the 
countryside as detailed in the report.

Members were given the opportunity to ask technical questions of the officer.

As the issues for the application were very similar to the preceding application, 
following an opportunity for any members of the public to speak or additional 
debate, a motion was moved by Councillor Mark Connolly, seconded by 
Councillor Richard Gamble, to refuse the application in line with the officer’s 
recommendation.

Page 7



Resolved:

That the application be refused for the following reasons:

1) The site is located in open countryside outside of the limits of 
development defined for Great Bedwyn in the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
(adopted January 2015). The proposal would therefore conflict with Core 
Policies 1, 2 and 18 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (adopted January 2015) 
which seeks to ensure that housing developments occupy sustainable 
locations throughout Wiltshire including the Pewsey Community Area.  
Furthermore, the proposal would conflict with the criteria set out in Core 
Policies 48, 51, 57 and 60 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and with 
paragraph 55 and of the NPPF for the following reasons:

 the application does not include any ‘clear evidence’ of the 
impracticality of continued use as a holiday let,

 local services and facilities could not be easily accessed other 
than by use of unsustainable modes and patterns of travel,

 The permanent independent residential use would result in 
pressure for outbuildings, play equipment etc that would be 
detrimental to the rural and landscape character and appearance of 
the area.

44. Urgent items

There were no urgent items.

(Duration of meeting:  6.00  - 6.40 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 8



Wiltshire Council  
Eastern Area Planning Committee

15th September 2016

Planning Appeals Received between 28/04/2016 and 07/09/2016

Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or 
COMM

Appeal Type Officer 
Recommend

Appeal 
Start Date

Overturn 
at Cttee

15/10378/FUL Newby Acre
Marlborough
Wiltshire

MARLBOROUGH Erection of single pair of 
semi-detached dwellings

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 10/05/2016 No

15/11397/FUL Land at Station House & 
Station Yard
Station Approach
Collingbourne Ducis
Wiltshire, SN8 3EB

COLLINGBOURNE 
DUCIS

Removal of existing builders' 
compound and outdoor storage 
area. Erection of 15 dwellings, with 
associated parking, turning, 
landscaping, and highway 
improvement works (resubmission 
of 15/00262/FUL).

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 20/07/2016 No

15/11733/FUL Sarsen House
The Green, Aldbourne
Wiltshire, SN8 2EN

ALDBOURNE To extend existing garage with 
traditional oak frame to create an 
independent living accommodation 
unit

DEL Written 
Representations

Approve with 
Conditions

16/08/2016 No

15/12362/FUL The Drummer Boy
Church Street
Market Lavington
Wiltshire, SN10 4DU

MARKET 
LAVINGTON

Change of use and conversion of 
existing Public House to two 3 bed 
dwellings, and erection of 1 two bed 
dwelling to rear of site, with 
associated amenity space and 
parking

COMM Written 
Representations

Approve with 
Conditions

23/05/2016 Yes

16/00044/FUL Land at Cadley Road
Collingbourne Ducis
SN8 3ED

COLLINGBOURNE 
DUCIS

Proposed construction of new 
underground dwelling.

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 13/07/2016 No

16/00222/TPO Raven House
13 High Street, Ramsbury
Wiltshire, SN8 2PA

RAMSBURY T1 - Remove Yew tree at the height 
of fence - 5' - 6 '

DEL Householder 
Appeal

Refuse 18/05/2016 No

16/02183/FUL Baydon House
Aldbourne Road Near 
Manor Lane South East 
to Baydon House Farm
Baydon, Wiltshire
SN8 2JB

BAYDON Demolition of existing glass house 
and erection of ground floor 
extension, re-organisation of 
internal room layout and associated 
external alterations.

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 16/08/2016 No

16/02309/LBC Baydon House
Aldbourne Road Near 
Manor Lane South East 
to Baydon House Farm
Baydon, Wiltshire
SN8 2JB

BAYDON Demolition of existing glass house 
and erection of ground floor 
extension, re-organisation of 
internal room layout and associated 
external alterations.

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 16/08/2016 No

16/02927/FUL Hallams
166 High Street
Burbage, Marlborough
Wiltshire, SN8 3AB

BURBAGE Single storey extension DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 11/07/2016 No

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5



16/03269/LBC Hallams
166 High Street
Burbage, Marlborough
Wiltshire, SN8 3AB

BURBAGE Single storey extension DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 11/07/2016 No

16/04791/OUT Land at Wayside
12 Chittoe Heath
Bromham, Wiltshre
SN15 2EH

BROMHAM Redevelopment of land, Erection of 
4 dwellings and garages (outline 
application for access only)

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 19/08/2016 No

P
age 10



Planning Appeals Decided between 28/04/2016 and 07/09/2016

Application 
No

Site Location Parish Proposal DEL 
or 
COMM

Appeal 
Type

Officer 
Recommend

Appeal 
Decision

Decision 
Date

Costs 
Awarded
?

14/11270/FUL Land at New Road
Bromham, Wiltshire

BROMHAM Change of use of agricultural land to 
create one gypsy and traveller pitch 
with associated ancillary 
development

DEL Hearing Refuse Dismissed 25/08/2016 No

15/01052/OUT Land off
Rabley Wood View
Marlborough, Wiltshire

MARLBOROUGH Residential development and 
associated works (Resubmission of 
14/01766/OUT)

COMM Written 
Reps

Approve with 
Conditions

Allowed 
with 
Conditions

20/07/2016 No

15/03513/FUL Lovelock Cottage
Little Salisbury
Pewsey, Swindon
Wiltshire, SN9 5NB

MILTON 
LILBOURNE

Conversion and extension of garage 
to dwelling with revision to entrance

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 02/06/2016 No

15/04084/FUL The Drummer Boy
Church Street
Market Lavington
SN10 4DU

MARKET 
LAVINGTON

Change of use and conversion of 
existing public house to two 3 bed 
dwellings, and erection of two 2 bed 
dwellings to rear of site, with 
associated amenity space and 
parking.

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 06/05/2016 No

15/06704/FUL 8 The Parade
Marlborough, Wiltshire
SN8 1NE

MARLBOROUGH Change of use from a sandwich shop 
to a dwelling. Internal alterations, 
changes to ground floor rear 
extension and erect new first floor 
extension over

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 11/05/2016 No

15/06875/LBC 8 The Parade
Marlborough, Wiltshire
SN8 1NE

MARLBOROUGH Internal alterations, changes to 
ground floor rear extension and erect 
new first floor extension over to 
facilitate change of use from a 
sandwich shop to a dwelling

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 11/05/2016 No

15/08054/FUL Land at The Croft
Broad Hinton
Wiltshire, SN4 9PD

BROAD HINTON Erection of a dwelling. DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 06/07/2016 No

15/09328/VAR 8 The Green
Aldbourne, Marlborough
Wiltshire, SN8 2BW

ALDBOURNE Removal of Condition 3 of planning 
permission 15/05628/FUL to allow 
the development to be used as a 
separate dwelling and variation of 
condition 4 of planning permission 
15/05628/FUL to allow the demolition 
of the wall and the creation of 1 off 
road parking space.

DEL Written 
Reps

Approve with 
Conditions

Split 
Decision

09/05/2016 No

15/10175/FUL The Beeches
Castle Lane, Devizes
Wiltshire, SN10 1HQ

DEVIZES Proposed basement parking, two 
storey extension, widening of 
vehicular access, external insulation, 
render and associated works to tree 
(Resubmission of 15/03460/FUL)

DEL Household
er Appeal

Refuse Dismissed 06/06/2016 No

15/10378/FUL Newby Acre
Marlborough
Wiltshire

MARLBOROUGH Erection of single pair of 
semi-detached dwellings

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 03/08/2016 No

P
age 11



15/10726/FUL 6 Commercial Road
Devizes, Wiltshire
SN10 1EH

DEVIZES Replacement of the existing timber 
framed windows on the front 
elevation, with UPVC, double glazed 
units, including new timber posts to 
the corners of the bay window.

DEL Household
er Appeal

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

08/07/2016 Costs 
Awarded 
Against 
Wiltshire 
Council

15/11338/FUL 1 Commercial Road
Devizes, Wiltshire
SN10 1EH

DEVIZES Two storey side extension and single 
storey rear extension

DEL Household
er Appeal

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

04/07/2016 No

15/11932/FUL 146 Stokke Common
Great Bedwyn
Wiltshire, SN8 3PH

GREAT BEDWYN Erection of one and a half storey 
extension, internal & external 
alterations to existing house, and 
hard landscaping.

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

18/08/2016 No

15/12031/LBC 146 Stokke Common
Great Bedwyn
Wiltshire, SN8 3PH

GREAT BEDWYN Erection of one and a half storey 
extension, internal & external 
alterations to existing house, and 
hard landscaping.

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

18/08/2016 No

15/12168/FUL Princes Paddock
Cross Lane
Marlborough, Wiltshire
SN8 1JZ

MARLBOROUGH Demolition of existing stable block 
and construction of bungalow in 
paddock

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 06/07/2016 No

15/12362/FUL The Drummer Boy
Church Street
Market Lavington
Wiltshire, SN10 4DU

MARKET 
LAVINGTON

Change of use and conversion of 
existing Public House to two 3 bed 
dwellings, and erection of 1 two bed 
dwelling to rear of site, with 
associated amenity space and 
parking

COMM Written 
Reps

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

01/09/2016 No

16/00222/TPO Raven House
13 High Street, 
Ramsbury, Wiltshire
SN8 2PA

RAMSBURY T1 - Remove Yew tree at the height 
of fence - 5' - 6 '

DEL Household
er Appeal

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

30/08/2016 No

P
age 12



Wiltshire Council  
Eastern Area Planning Committee

15th September 2016

Planning Appeals Received between 28/04/2016 and 07/09/2016

Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or 
COMM

Appeal Type Officer 
Recommend

Appeal 
Start Date

Overturn 
at Cttee

15/10378/FUL Newby Acre
Marlborough
Wiltshire

MARLBOROUGH Erection of single pair of 
semi-detached dwellings

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 10/05/2016 No

15/11397/FUL Land at Station House & 
Station Yard
Station Approach
Collingbourne Ducis
Wiltshire, SN8 3EB

COLLINGBOURNE 
DUCIS

Removal of existing builders' 
compound and outdoor storage 
area. Erection of 15 dwellings, with 
associated parking, turning, 
landscaping, and highway 
improvement works (resubmission 
of 15/00262/FUL).

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 20/07/2016 No

15/11733/FUL Sarsen House
The Green, Aldbourne
Wiltshire, SN8 2EN

ALDBOURNE To extend existing garage with 
traditional oak frame to create an 
independent living accommodation 
unit

DEL Written 
Representations

Approve with 
Conditions

16/08/2016 No

15/12362/FUL The Drummer Boy
Church Street
Market Lavington
Wiltshire, SN10 4DU

MARKET 
LAVINGTON

Change of use and conversion of 
existing Public House to two 3 bed 
dwellings, and erection of 1 two bed 
dwelling to rear of site, with 
associated amenity space and 
parking

COMM Written 
Representations

Approve with 
Conditions

23/05/2016 Yes

16/00044/FUL Land at Cadley Road
Collingbourne Ducis
SN8 3ED

COLLINGBOURNE 
DUCIS

Proposed construction of new 
underground dwelling.

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 13/07/2016 No

16/00222/TPO Raven House
13 High Street, Ramsbury
Wiltshire, SN8 2PA

RAMSBURY T1 - Remove Yew tree at the height 
of fence - 5' - 6 '

DEL Householder 
Appeal

Refuse 18/05/2016 No

16/02183/FUL Baydon House
Aldbourne Road Near 
Manor Lane South East 
to Baydon House Farm
Baydon, Wiltshire
SN8 2JB

BAYDON Demolition of existing glass house 
and erection of ground floor 
extension, re-organisation of 
internal room layout and associated 
external alterations.

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 16/08/2016 No

16/02309/LBC Baydon House
Aldbourne Road Near 
Manor Lane South East 
to Baydon House Farm
Baydon, Wiltshire
SN8 2JB

BAYDON Demolition of existing glass house 
and erection of ground floor 
extension, re-organisation of 
internal room layout and associated 
external alterations.

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 16/08/2016 No

16/02927/FUL Hallams
166 High Street
Burbage, Marlborough
Wiltshire, SN8 3AB

BURBAGE Single storey extension DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 11/07/2016 No

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



16/03269/LBC Hallams
166 High Street
Burbage, Marlborough
Wiltshire, SN8 3AB

BURBAGE Single storey extension DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 11/07/2016 No

16/04791/OUT Land at Wayside
12 Chittoe Heath
Bromham, Wiltshre
SN15 2EH

BROMHAM Redevelopment of land, Erection of 
4 dwellings and garages (outline 
application for access only)

DEL Written 
Representations

Refuse 19/08/2016 No

P
age 14



Planning Appeals Decided between 28/04/2016 and 07/09/2016

Application 
No

Site Location Parish Proposal DEL 
or 
COMM

Appeal 
Type

Officer 
Recommend

Appeal 
Decision

Decision 
Date

Costs 
Awarded
?

14/11270/FUL Land at New Road
Bromham, Wiltshire

BROMHAM Change of use of agricultural land to 
create one gypsy and traveller pitch 
with associated ancillary 
development

DEL Hearing Refuse Dismissed 25/08/2016

15/01052/OUT Land off
Rabley Wood View
Marlborough, Wiltshire

MARLBOROUGH Residential development and 
associated works (Resubmission of 
14/01766/OUT)

COMM Written 
Reps

Approve with 
Conditions

Allowed 
with 
Conditions

20/07/2016

15/03513/FUL Lovelock Cottage
Little Salisbury
Pewsey, Swindon
Wiltshire, SN9 5NB

MILTON 
LILBOURNE

Conversion and extension of garage 
to dwelling with revision to entrance

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 02/06/2016

15/04084/FUL The Drummer Boy
Church Street
Market Lavington
SN10 4DU

MARKET 
LAVINGTON

Change of use and conversion of 
existing public house to two 3 bed 
dwellings, and erection of two 2 bed 
dwellings to rear of site, with 
associated amenity space and 
parking.

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 06/05/2016

15/06704/FUL 8 The Parade
Marlborough, Wiltshire
SN8 1NE

MARLBOROUGH Change of use from a sandwich shop 
to a dwelling. Internal 
alterations,changes to ground floor 
rear extension and erect new first 
floor extension over

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 11/05/2016

15/06875/LBC 8 The Parade
Marlborough, Wiltshire
SN8 1NE

MARLBOROUGH Internal alterations, changes to 
ground floor rear extension and erect 
new first floor extension over to 
facilitate change of use from a 
sandwich shop to a dwelling

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 11/05/2016

15/08054/FUL Land at The Croft
Broad Hinton
Wiltshire, SN4 9PD

BROAD HINTON Erection of a dwelling. DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 06/07/2016

15/09328/VAR 8 The Green
Aldbourne, Marlborough
Wiltshire, SN8 2BW

ALDBOURNE Removal of Condition 3 of planning 
permission 15/05628/FUL to allow 
the development to be used as a 
seperate dwelling and variation of 
condition 4 of planning permission 
15/05628/FUL to allow the demoltion 
of the wall and the creation of 1 off 
road parking space.

DEL Written 
Reps

Approve with 
Conditions

Split 
Decision

09/05/2016

15/10175/FUL The Beeches
Castle Lane, Devizes
Wiltshire, SN10 1HQ

DEVIZES Proposed basement parking, two 
storey extension, widening of 
vehicular access, external insultation, 
render and associated works to tree 
(Resubmission of 15/03460/FUL)

DEL Household
er Appeal

Refuse Dismissed 06/06/2016

15/10378/FUL Newby Acre
Marlborough
Wiltshire

MARLBOROUGH Erection of single pair of 
semi-detached dwellings

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 03/08/2016

P
age 15



15/10726/FUL 6 Commercial Road
Devizes, Wiltshire
SN10 1EH

DEVIZES Replacement of the existing timber 
framed windows on the front 
elevation,  with UPVC, double glazed 
units, including new timber posts to 
the corners of the bay window.

DEL Household
er Appeal

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

08/07/2016

15/11338/FUL 1 Commercial Road
Devizes, Wiltshire
SN10 1EH

DEVIZES Two storey side extension and single 
storey rear extension

DEL Household
er Appeal

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

04/07/2016

15/11932/FUL 146 Stokke Common
Great Bedwyn
Wiltshire, SN8 3PH

GREAT BEDWYN Erection of one and a half storey 
extension, internal & external 
alterations to existing house, and 
hard landscaping.

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

18/08/2016

15/12031/LBC 146 Stokke Common
Great Bedwyn
Wiltshire, SN8 3PH

GREAT BEDWYN Erection of one and a half storey 
extension, internal & external 
alterations to existing house, and 
hard landscaping.

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

18/08/2016

15/12168/FUL Princes Paddock
Cross Lane
Marlborough, Wiltshire
SN8 1JZ

MARLBOROUGH Demolition of existing stable block 
and construction of bungalow in 
paddock

DEL Written 
Reps

Refuse Dismissed 06/07/2016

15/12362/FUL The Drummer Boy
Church Street
Market Lavington
Wiltshire, SN10 4DU

MARKET 
LAVINGTON

Change of use and conversion of 
existing Public House to two 3 bed 
dwellings, and erection of 1 two bed 
dwelling to rear of site, with 
associated amenity space and 
parking

COMM Written 
Reps

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

01/09/2016

16/00222/TPO Raven House
13 High Street, 
Ramsbury, Wiltshire
SN8 2PA

RAMSBURY T1 - Remove Yew tree at the height 
of fence - 5' - 6 '

DEL Household
er Appeal

Refuse Allowed 
with 
Conditions

30/08/2016

P
age 16



REPORT FOR EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE Report No.1

Date of Meeting 15th September 2016

Application Number 16/03703/FUL

Site Address Land at Woodland Road, Patney, Devizes, Wiltshire

Proposal Erection of a detached specialist dwelling for disabled person

Applicant Mrs Rebecca Thursby

Town/Parish Council PATNEY

Electoral Division PEWSEY VALE – Cllr P Oatway

Grid Ref 407209  158569

Type of application Full Planning

Case Officer Jonathan James

Reason for the application being considered by Committee 

The application has been called to committee at the request of the division member, Cllr. 

Oatway. The key issues for justifying the call in are the scale of development, the visual 

impact on the surrounding area, the relationship to adjoining properties and the design – 

bulk, height, general appearance of the proposed development.

1. Purpose of Report

The purpose of the report is to assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of the 

development plan and other material considerations and to consider the recommendation 

that the application be refused.

2. Report Summary

The main issues to be considered are the principle of development due to the fact that the 

site lies within countryside outside of any recognised Limits of Development; the visual 

impact on the character of the landscape; and the detrimental impact on the setting of the 

listed building (21 Woodland Road). The needs of the child in this case are also a primary 

consideration. It is considered that the proposed development does not overcome the 

previous reasons for refusal under application 15/09830/FUL and should therefore be 

refused for similar reasons.

Page 17

Agenda Item 7a



3. Site Description

The site forms part of a field, bounded to the north by a lane that forms a public right of way 

and to the west by Woodland Road, which is a typical village road consisting of the 

carriageway and no pavements. Beyond the site to the south and west the fields continue. 

The site is on higher land than the carriageway. On the opposite side of the road are 

dwellings, including to the south-west, a Grade II listed building at 21 Woodland Road, 

thatched and partly half timbered. 

The site forms part of a group of fields that extend northwards from the small village green. 

The ground rises away from the village green, and as a result, the site is on higher ground.

4. Planning History

15/09830/FUL Erection of a detached specialist dwelling for disabled person.

With specific regard to the development proposed under the current submission the previous 

application 15/09830/FUL was refused on the 30th December 2015 for the following reasons:

1) The proposed development by virtue of its siting on rising land on an undeveloped open 

field that forms part of the identity and distinctive character of the settlement of Patney would 

have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the settlement that would 

conflict with Core Policies 51 and 57 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and with paragraph 115 

of the NPPF that gives great weight to conserving the landscape of areas of outstanding 

natural beauty.

2) The proposed development would harm the setting of the designated heritage asset at 21, 

Woodland Road, by reason of the close proximity of the development to this asset, the 

impact on the setting when viewed from the nearby public right of way to the north of the 

site, and the change in historical character through the partial loss of the current agricultural 

setting. This would amount to less than substantial harm, as defined in the NPPF, and would 

conflict with Core Policy 58 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, which seeks to conserve and 

enhance the setting of listed buildings. 

3) The proposal conflicts with the settlement strategy of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, as set 

out in Core Policies 1, 2 and 18 as the settlement at Patney is not identified as a location for 

sustainable growth and lies outside of the existing limits of development for settlements in 

the county and outside the built up limits of the identified small villages in the Pewsey 

Community Area. The development does not accord with any of the exceptions policies 

Page 18



listed at paragraph 4.25 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015 and the site has not been 

brought forward for development through a neighbourhood plan. 

4) Although the personal circumstances set out by the applicant are considered to amount to 

a relevant material consideration, it is not considered that they outweigh the cumulative harm 

identified in reasons 1-3 above.

The period for appealing against this refusal expired on 30th June 2016 with no appeal 

having been made. 

5. The Proposal

The application is for the erection of a single detached family house on part of the field, 

served by a new access from Woodland Road. The house is described as ‘a barn 

conversion style dwelling’ and would be constructed of timber weatherboarding above a 

brick plinth with a clay tiled roof. The house has two floors, with the first floor within the roof 

and lit by dormer windows, gable windows and rooflights. The house addresses the road, but 

is set back from it by between 16-19 metres, with a parking area to the front. The main part 

of the garden would be to the south. The house has a ridge height of ca 7.6 metres and is 

sited on land ca 2.2 metres above the road. It has a length of just over 14 metres and a 

width at maximum of close to 13 metres. 

The proposal is put forward as meeting the specific needs of the disabled child of the 

applicant, explained in detail in documents submitted by the applicant and available on the 

web site.

6. Local Planning Policy

Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015 (WCS):

 Core Policy 1 – Settlement Strategy. This identifies settlements where 

sustainable development will take place, with a settlement hierarchy running 

from Principal Settlements through market towns and local service centres to 

large and small villages. Patney is not listed as a large or small village in the 

Pewsey Community Area.   

 Core Policy 2 – Delivery Strategy – in order to deliver the sustainable 

development envisaged in CP1, CP2 sets out the delivery strategy. Again, this 

states that houses will be delivered in sustainable locations, with a presumption 

in favour of such development within the limits of development defined on the 

Page 19



policies map. Outside the limits of development, development is only permitted in 

the circumstances outlined in paragraph 4.25 of the CS. As Patney is not 

identified in the settlement hierarchy (CP18 – Pewsey Community Area), it is 

outside of the limits of development of the sustainable locations. 

 Paragraph 4.25 of the CS identifies the ‘exception policies’ which seek to 

respond to local circumstances and national policy to represent additional 

sources of supply of new employment and housing sites outside of the 

settlements identified in the hierarchy. Of these policies, CP34 (employment 

land); CP37 (military establishments); CP39 & 40 (tourism development) and 

CP47 (gypsies and travellers) are not relevant to this proposal. The remaining 

exception policies – CP44; CP46 and CP48 are addressed below. 

 Core Policy 44 – affordable housing – this policy allows for the granting of 

planning permission for small sites comprising affordable housing only. It sets 

out the criteria against which any emerging proposals will be assessed, and 

advocates a proactive approach in conjunction with the parish council and 

working with local communities and other parties. The criteria include clear 

support for the proposal from the local community; meeting an identified and 

genuine local need ; within, adjoining or well related to the existing settlement; 

not compromising environmental and landscape considerations and respecting 

the character and setting of the settlement; and any such housing to be always 

available for defined local needs into the future. 

 Core Policy 46 deals with meeting the needs of vulnerable and older people. The 

supporting text in paragraphs 6.53; 6.54 and 6.55 refers to addressing the issue 

of an aging population; although the policy text itself refers to the provision in 

suitable locations of new housing to meet the specific needs of vulnerable and 
older people, so it has a wider applicability than simply being restricted to older 

people. However, the policy does state that such accommodation should be 

provided in sustainable locations, within settlements identified in CP1, (normally 

in the principal settlements and market towns), but in exceptional circumstances 

outside but adjacent to the principal settlements and market towns.  The criteria 

for development in such locations is similar to that for CP44 in terms of 

evidencing need, not compromising landscape and environmental considerations 

and respecting the character and setting of the settlement. 

 Core Policy 48 deals with supporting rural life and covers a range of employment 

and social facilities. In relation to new housing, it states that outside of the 

defined limits of development, and outside of the existing built up areas of small 

Page 20



villages (the bottom rung on the CP1 settlement hierarchy), residential 

development will be supported where it meets the accommodation needs for 

workers employed in the immediate vicinity in the interests of agriculture, forestry 

or other employment essential to the countryside. 

 Core Policy 51 – Landscape – the supporting text for this in paragraph 6.85 

identifies the need to protect the distinct character and identity of the villages and 

settlements in Wiltshire. Development should protect, conserve and where 

possible enhance landscape character, and any negative impacts must be 

mitigated. A list of criteria is set out, and great weight is afforded to conserving 

and enhancing the landscape and scenic beauty of the AONB.

 Core Policy 57 – requires new development to make a positive contribution to 

the character of Wiltshire

 Core Policy 58 – Ensuring the conservation of the historic environment – 

requires development to protect, conserve and where possible, enhance the 

historic environment, and states that designated heritage assets and their 

settings will be conserved.

National Planning Policy Framework 2012

 Relevant sections include the need to give great weight to conserving the 

landscape and scenic beauty of AONB’s and the need to assess the impact of 

development on heritage assets.  There is also a requirement to ensure that 

there is a 5 year housing land supply in the housing market area.

The site is within the North Wessex Downs AONB.

21, Woodland Road (opposite the access entrance to the site) is a Grade II listed 

building.

Section 66 (1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 – 

contains a duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or 

its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

7. Summary of consultation responses

Patney Parish Council – Objects on the following grounds: 

The PC notes that this application is very similar to Application No 15/09830/FUL which was 
refused by Wiltshire Council on 30 December 2015. In fact, there are only very minor 

Page 21



differences between the two applications and much of the supporting documentation is 
copied from last time. As a result, many of the comments that the PC make are similar to last 
time.

The whole thrust of this application surrounds the very sad condition that the applicant’s 
young daughter, is in. This is very clearly borne out by the comments and advice from all the 
medical and clinical people and organisations who have submitted representations on behalf 
of the applicant. The PC is in no position to argue these views and indeed does not do so. 
Certain other non-medical/clinical organisations have seen fit to support the application due 
to her condition – the PC strongly challenges their right so to do.

The PC provided an opportunity for all villagers to comment on the application. Comments 
received by the PC and the other representations published on the Wiltshire Council website 
show a high level of local response both in favour of and against the application. The 
village’s response to the first application, received by the Parish Council and inclusive of 
published villager comment on the Wiltshire Council website, showed 10 households ‘for’ 
with 18 ‘against’. This second application, applying the same criteria, resulted in 9 
households ‘for’ with 17 ‘against’. These statistics discounted views expressed by 
professional bodies, such as medical opinions, Campaign for the Protection of Rural 
England, and such, and also views from outside the village. They do legitimately include 
opinions which have been verbally expressed to the Council from those with no access to 
emails and web sites etc. The Council reaffirmed that whilst the views of villagers assisted in 
its deliberations such views could not and should not be regarded as binding on the 
councillors in arriving at their final decision on the application.

This application needs to be viewed from a planning perspective only (Core Strategy 
adopted by Wiltshire Council January 2015) and in particular as to whether it complies with 
current planning and correct use of agricultural land.

The PC has been made aware of historic covenants and agreements with regard to the land 
in question and the adjoining paddocks although no documentation has been seen. The PC 
is aware that an agreement currently exists between the owners of the land and previous 
owners that no building can take place on these paddocks – this is supported by 
documentation from the Land Registry dated 2 June 2016 under reference WT159247.

The PC has unanimously decided to object to this application on the following grounds:

 The proposed development is not in accordance with the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy;

  The village is in the North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
and this should be protected;

  The land to be used for the development is agricultural and is currently used as 
such;

  If the application is approved this could potentially be a precedent for further 
development of this area of the village;

  The entire paddock area in this part of the village provides part of the charm that 
the village has to offer, as envisaged when the paddocks were acquired in 1997;

  The development cannot possibly be regarded as infill – from the corner of the 
bridleway adjacent to the paddock moving in a southerly direction towards the 
village green there are no other properties on that side of Woodland Road;

  In his submission to the PC, Damien Thursby refers to the support that the PC 
gave to the application relating to 23-27 Woodland Road (Application No. 
15/06250/FUL). The PC wishes to point out that its support was subject to 
provisos, but Wiltshire Council approved the application. However, the owners 

Page 22



have recently carried out extensive renovations to the current properties and 
have refurbished No. 25, unoccupied since 2005. This seems to demonstrate 
very clearly that the owners have no intention in the short or medium term to 
carry out redevelopment

 The dominant position of the proposed building would be very apparent and be 
contrary to the ambience of this part of the village;

  The support provided by the various medical parties consulted by the applicant 
are not surprising since they clearly demonstrate that the application would be of 
considerable benefit to the applicant’s daughter. The PC is in no position to 
challenge these views but does challenge whether they are a justification for 
approving the application

  The PC is in no doubt that the proposed property would be well outside the 
financial means of many people should the property ever be re-sold and this 
clearly calls into question the applicant’s implied condition that it would or could 
be sold to another family with a disabled member. We are all being asked to 
accept that this development (at a reported valuation of between £725,000 and 
£750,000) is the only solution to the problem that this family faces. It is beyond 
doubt that the average income family could not afford this proposed 
development.

In conclusion the PC is of the unanimous view that this application, as with the previous one, 
totally lacks credibility and should be rejected.

Wiltshire Council Ecology – No objections.

Wiltshire Council Highways – The highway position is one which acknowledges the 

policy objection in regards to the location of the proposal. It is within the AONB and 

Patney is without any policy boundary. The previous application was refused on these 

grounds. If permission were to be granted, the visibility splay on the site location plan 

would need to be demonstrated and conditions applied to any permission granted 

securing the visibility splay and the parking and turning provision, in the interests of road 

safety. 

Wessex Water - New water supply and waste water connections will be required from 

Wessex water to serve this proposed development. Separate systems of drainage will 

be required to serve the proposed development. No surface water connections will be 

permitted to the foul sewer system. 

AONB Landscape Officer – No objection; the AONB previously offered advice on how 

to make the development acceptable and it is noted that this advice has been taken 

onboard to satisfy these requirements. The proposed development is sited and 

designed so as to minimise its impact on the natural beauty of the area and is 

considered to comply with CP51 and the NWD Management Plan.

Page 23



CPRE – Consider permission should be granted for the proposed special dwelling; do 

not believe there would be unacceptable harm to the countryside.  The extreme 

circumstances of the case warrant acceptance of the application under policy CP46 

Meeting the needs of Wiltshire's vulnerable and older people or policy CP44 Rural 

exceptions sites. 

8. Publicity

The application has been advertised by way of a site notice and press notice (setting of 

a listed building and departure from the development plan) and by letter to 

neighbouring properties. 

There has been a split in the opinions expressed by local residents to the local planning 

authority. Approximately half of those households making representations object to the 

proposal, citing various concerns, including those covered by the parish council, and 

concerned at the impact of the development on the character and appearance of the 

area, the setting of the listed building and the conflict with planning policy. Whilst most of 

them are sympathetic to the personal circumstances cited by the applicant in relation to 

her daughter’s needs, they do not consider that these justify the proposal. The other 

approximate half either raise no objection or support the proposal, many again 

sympathising with and supporting the case put forward by the applicant.

The proposal is also supported by the medical staff involved in the care of the applicant’s 

disabled daughter and by her MP from Salisbury.

The full comments of all identified above as responding to the application are set out in 

the letters on the Council’s web site, although a summary of the main points are 

provided below:

Oppose:

 Strongly oppose the application to build on the site; the present application is for a 

virtually identical dwelling in the same position as before;

 An alternative was offered for rent to the applicant which, was declined; there is 

an alternative more appropriate site behind 21 Woodland Road; the existing 

annex could be extended to provide appropriate accommodation;

 Restrictive covenant on the land preventing its development;

Page 24



 The site is part of a highly valued open space at the heart of the village which is 

valued for its character and rural feel of the village; it is integral to the character of 

Patney;

 The scale and type of dwelling is visually sensitive and will not respect the nature, 

character and setting of the area;

 Detrimental visual impact; the site is designated in the Wiltshire Core Strategy as 

“open countryside”. It is an agricultural field, not infill;

 The development would elongate the settlement beyond the built form;

 It is also in an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty;

 Detrimental impact on the setting of the adjacent Listed Building; cumulative 

impact with adjacent development on setting of heritage;

 Create a precedent for pressure to build on the remaining part of the pasture;

 Patney is not a sustainable village - there are no medical facilities, no shops, no 

parks, no pavements;

 Contrary to policy; The development does not meet with the requirements of the 

policies of the development plan; there are no exceptional circumstances to 

deviate away from policy; 

 No justification for a two storey house, which would be overly dominant within this 

location;

 Any financial gain should be to the benefit of the community through a specialist 

need house of affordable housing.

Support:

 A need for a specially adapted home to meet the requirements of the family;

 The design of the house is sympathetic to the surroundings; 

 The barn style building will integrate well within the village and will be well 

concealed;

 The dwelling would fit in well with the village and won't have a negative impact on 

the character, landscape or heritage of Patney;

 It is for exceptional social needs, and these justify a reduction of the size of the 

open field within the village;

 The needs raise an exceptional case at the high level of permanent support 

required by the child; this permanent solution would meet those needs;

 The addition of this house, combined with the planting shown on the plan, will hide 

the current building and significantly improve the landscape.

9. Planning Considerations

Page 25



Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act states that “determination 

must be made in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise”. Paras 2 & 11 of the NPPF reiterate and confirm this requirement. 

This is the starting point for determination. The Wiltshire Core Strategy, adopted in 

January 2015 is the relevant development plan for the purposes of this proposal.

9.1 Principle of Development

Patney is not a settlement identified within the hierarchy set out in the adopted Wiltshire 

Core Strategy. As a result, new residential development is not considered to be 

sustainable in principle and such development can only take place if the proposal meets 

the criteria of one of the ‘exception policies’ or if the land has been brought forward 

through a Neighbourhood Plan (NP). There is no NP for Patney and thus it is only the 

exceptions policies that can be considered, although these must be taken in conjunction 

with the other relevant policies relating to development, such as CP51; 57 and 58.

CP 44 – this is the exceptions policy relating to affordable housing. However, the 

proposal does not meet the definition of affordable housing provided in the NPPF and it 

does not accord with all the criteria set out in the policy. The objection of the Parish 

Council and from half of those making representations points to the conclusion that the 

proposal does not have the ‘clear support’ from the local community and it has not been 

brought forward in conjunction with the parish council. Issues in relation to the 

environmental and landscape considerations and relationship to the character and 

setting of the settlement will be addressed separately below under the relevant 

landscape and heritage policies, but the proposal is also not able to be kept always 

available to meet local affordable housing needs. The applicant’s attempts to address 

this issue in the supporting information, whilst laudable, will not achieve the aim of the 

policy, which is designed to secure affordable housing in suitable locations. In short, the 

proposal does not comply with this policy.

CP46 – this is the exceptions policy relating to meeting the needs of vulnerable people.  

Whilst the supporting text and much of the policy is directed at the needs of older people, 

the applicant’s daughter would meet any reasonable definition of a vulnerable person, 

and thus the policy must be considered. However, the policy states that such 

accommodation should be provided in sustainable locations identified in Core Policy 1, 

and in exceptional circumstances, outside but adjacent to the principal settlements and 

market towns. Again, there is also the caveat that landscape considerations will not be 

Page 26



compromised and that the development respects the character and setting of the 

settlement, as well as facilities and services being accessible from the site. In short, the 

proposal does not accord with policy CP46 as Patney is not a sustainable location 

identified by the policy.

CP48 – this policy supports proposals for new housing that are required to meet the 

accommodation needs of workers whose employment is essential to the countryside 

such as farmworkers. No such case has been made here and no justification exists for 

permitting the development under the terms of this policy. 

The proposal is therefore not in accordance with any of the exception policies of the 

Wiltshire Core Strategy and is therefore contrary to these provisions of the development 

plan. However, other policies must also be considered in relation to the wider aims of 

sustainability, including protecting the character and appearance of the area, the 

landscape and heritage assets.

9.2 Landscape Impact

The whole of the settlement of Patney and its surrounding countryside is included within 

the North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The purpose of AONB 

designation is to conserve and enhance the natural beauty of the area. The Council is 

required to have regard to this purpose in determining planning applications. The NPPF 

states that ‘great weight’ should be given to conserving the landscape and natural beauty 

of these landscapes. 

The Wiltshire Core Strategy identifies the need to protect the distinct character and 

identity of the villages and settlements in Wiltshire.

Given these two factors, a key issue must be to understand the contribution the site 

makes to the character and appearance of the village. Currently, it forms part of the 

agricultural landscape that acts as the backdrop to the view from the small village green 

at the centre of the settlement. There is no evidence of the site having been developed 

and the fields between Manor Farm and Woodland Road are a characteristic part of the 

settlement, preserving the openness that prevents it from becoming just another linear 

development in the manner that has developed alongside the eastern side of Woodland 

Road from beyond the sunken pathway to the Beechingstoke Road. The listed building 

at 21, Woodland Road still looks out over these fields, and the public footpath connecting 

Woodland Road and Manor Farm still looks out across these fields to the listed building 

and beyond.

Page 27



Thus whilst the landscape is not part of the rolling downs that offer commanding views 

across the Pewsey Vale, it is part of the distinct character that characterises the 

settlement of Patney and if the identity and character of such settlements is to be kept, 

the landscape at this smaller scale is worthy of conserving. 

The proposal would see the erection of a modern dwelling at one of the highest points in 

this field. It would erode the character of the area, marking the first modern intrusion of 

domestic residential development. It would be prominent in views across from the 

footpath to the listed building (see below). The construction of the new access from the 

road, with its associated visibility splays, would further detract from the character and 

appearance of the area. In short, the proposal would conflict with Core Policy 51, in that 

it would have a harmful impact upon the landscape character of the area and the 

distinctive character of the settlement. Whilst the mitigation proposals are noted and 

taken into account, they could not ameliorate the harm that the construction of a dwelling 

of this size in this location would have here. 

Whilst the materials proposed are unobjectionable in this rural setting, (although rather 

than looking like a ‘barn conversion style of dwelling’ as described by the agent, in reality 

it has the appearance of a dormer bungalow clad in wood), the siting of the dwelling 

simply fails to relate positively to its landscape setting and the existing pattern of 

development and is not sympathetic to the historic landscape. It therefore conflicts with 

Core Policy 57. 

9.3 Impact on Heritage Assets. 

The main designated heritage asset here is the listed building at 21, Woodland Road. 

The construction of the access opposite this property, breaching the bank, and the 

construction of the house in a location where it has an adverse impact on the setting of 

the listed building when viewed across the fields from the public right of way amount to 

less than substantial harm to the setting of the listed building. Nevertheless, this is still a 

harmful impact that needs to be taken into account and brings the proposal into conflict 

with Core Policy 58. Less than substantial harm needs to be weighed against any public 

benefit. In this case, any public benefit is tangential, and may only be indirect in terms of 

meeting the needs of a vulnerable person, a balance that is addressed below.

The structure, with associated access and parking and turning features, along with the 

urbanised form of landscaping will become permanent features within the landscape 

adjacent to and within the setting of the listed building. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 

applicant’s heritage advice suggests that there would not be any harm on the listed 

Page 28



building or its setting, this is not the view of Council Officers. In fact the applicant’s own 

submission somewhat contradicts its own conclusion by recommending that “in order to 

ensure that the new development pays deference to the established character of the 

locality, including the setting on No 21 Woodland Road”, that the development should 

incorporate the following elements:

 The floor slab of the new dwelling should be set down as far as practical; 

 The footprint of the new dwelling should be located as close as possible to the 

northern boundary of the site; 

 The junction of the proposed access drive with Woodland Road should be as far 

north as possible, and the drive should be surfaced in gravel or rolled hoggin; 

 The form of the new dwelling should be traditional, with a front to back span no 

greater than found typically in the village; 

 External walling materials should be mellow in colour and have a ‘soft’ texture, 

roofed over with profiled clay tiles; 

 Any external lighting scheme should minimise the amount of any light spill beyond 

the site boundaries; 

 The finished scheme should be carefully landscaped with the aim of repairing and 

enhancing site boundaries and old hedgerows on land within the same 

ownership”.

As can be seen from the evidence of the applicants heritage statement, enhancements 

sought to the scheme the design, use of materials, the location of the dwelling and the 

location of the access point and length of access track are all recognised as requiring 

amendment in order to make the scheme acceptable in terms of the impact on the 

adjacent listed building. 

Development Plan Summary 

The proposal does not accord with the policies of the development plan. It is not in a 

sustainable location and would adversely affect the character and appearance of this 

part of the settlement and would cause less than substantial harm to the setting of a 

listed building. 

9.4 Other material considerations

9.4.1 Housing land supply – the site is located within the Eastern Housing Market Area 

where the latest housing land supply figures showed a land supply in excess of 8 years, 

well beyond the 5.25 required to bring into play paragraph 14 of the NPPF in relation to 

Page 29



housing land supply. The policies of the development plan can therefore be considered 

to be up-to-date in terms of paragraph 14 and can be given full weight.

9.4.2 Personal Circumstances – the personal circumstances of the applicant’s 

daughter are set out in detail in the planning application, in terms of her needs and the 

healthcare that she requires. This is a relevant material consideration that must be 

weighed in the planning balance. The advantages of being close to relatives are set out, 

and the reasons why proximity to a hospital is not critical in this case are identified. The 

application is supported by the medical team that provides her care. The house has been 

designed to provide for her needs. The appellant states that they have been 

unsuccessful in finding a building plot to build a specially adapted home, losing out to 

higher bidders, and that a self-build custom home will meet their requirements in a 

manner that would not be easily achieved through purchase and adaption/extension of 

an existing dwelling. The applicant has supplied a great deal of material that has been 

carefully considered.

9.4.3 – Other matters – various other matters have been raised such as private 

covenants but these are not relevant to the consideration of the application and the key 

issues are considered to be those identified above. 

9.4.4 – Equality Act/Human Rights – It has been suggested that the Council has failed 

to pay sufficient regard to the requirements of the Equality Act (2010). The Equality Duty 

has three aims. It requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to:

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 

prohibited by the Act;

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic 

and people who do not share it; and

• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 

people who do not share it.

Having due regard means consciously thinking about the three aims of the Equality Duty 

as part of the process of decision-making, this the Council has clearly done.

The Equality Duty also explicitly recognises that disabled people’s needs may be different 

from those of non-disabled people. Public bodies should therefore take account of 

disabled people’s impairments when making decisions about policies or services. Whilst 

barrister advice offered by the applicant’s submission suggests that the Core Strategy is 

Page 30



‘silent’ on this matter, Core Policy 46 does address the housing needs of vulnerable 

people. 

In relation to Human Rights, the Courts have held that ‘the best interests of a child shall 

be a primary consideration’. However, they have made it clear that this does not make the 

best interests of a child determinative, paramount, or the primary consideration. The 

approach to be taken is to seek to identify the child’s best interests and to keep these at 

the forefront of the decision makers mind as all material considerations are examined and 

the exercise of planning judgement made. 

In this case, the best interests of the child lie in providing suitable accommodation. This 

proposal would provide suitable accommodation, adapted for her needs and close to 

family support. However, it does not follow that this necessarily means that this is the only 

site or property where her needs can be met, and that those needs override all other 

material considerations. The adverse impacts of not approving the application would 

mean that the search for a suitable site or property would continue whilst the family 

remain in other accommodation.  It must be decided whether this adverse impact is 

proportionate.

10. Conclusion (The Planning Balance)

The Council has a difficult judgement to make. It has to determine applications in 

accordance with the development plan, except where material considerations indicate 

otherwise. A primary interest in this application is the needs of the child, but the law 

makes it clear that this by itself is not determinative. 

The proposal is in conflict with the development plan, in that it would result in the 

construction of a house in a location and site where normally no new dwellings would be 

permitted. It would have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the area 

and would cause harm (albeit less than substantial in NPPF terms), to the setting of the 

listed building on the opposite side of the road. These are real harms, and some (not all) 

of those local residents making representations have stated their objections to the 

proposal on one or more of these grounds.

Set against this is the valid material consideration of the special needs of the applicant’s 

daughter. These cannot be ignored and must be given some weight. 

In the final analysis, it is considered that whilst the personal circumstances of the 

applicant and her daughter amount to a primary and significant material consideration, it 

Page 31



does not outweigh the harm that would be caused by allowing a development that in this 

particular location would have an irreversible significant adverse impact on the character 

and appearance of the area, and cause harm to the setting of a heritage asset, on a site 

that has not been brought forward for development by the local community. It is 

considered that the adverse impact of such a decision is proportionate in this case. 

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the application be refused for the following reasons:

1) The proposed development by virtue of its siting on rising land on an undeveloped open 

field that forms part of the identity and distinctive character of the settlement of Patney would 

have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the settlement that would 

conflict with Core Policies 51 and 57 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and with paragraph 115 

of the NPPF that gives great weight to conserving the landscape of areas of outstanding 

natural beauty.

2) The proposed development would harm the setting of the designated heritage asset at 21, 

Woodland Road, by reason of the close proximity of the development to this asset, the 

impact on the setting when viewed from the nearby public right of way to the north of the 

site, and the change in historical character through the partial loss of the current agricultural 

setting. This would amount to less than substantial harm, as defined in the NPPF, and would 

conflict with Core Policy 58 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, which seeks to conserve and 

enhance the setting of listed buildings. 

3) The proposal conflicts with the settlement strategy of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, as set 

out in Core Policies 1, 2 and 18 as the settlement at Patney is not identified as a location for 

sustainable growth and lies outside of the existing limits of development for settlements in 

the county and outside the built up limits of the identified small villages in the Pewsey 

Community Area. The development does not accord with any of the exceptions policies 

listed at paragraph 4.25 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015 and the site has not been 

brought forward for development through a neighbourhood plan. 

4) Although the personal circumstances set out by the applicant are considered to amount to 

a primary material consideration, it is not considered that they outweigh the cumulative harm 

identified in reasons 1-3 above.

Page 32



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	5 Public Participation and Councillors' Questions
	6 Planning Appeals and Updates
	7a 16/03703/FUL: Land at Woodland Road, Patney, Devizes
	16.03703.FUL - Aerial Plan
	16.03703.FUL - Location Plan


